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SUBJECT: SUGGESTED MODIFICATIONS FOR CARLSBAD ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT UPDATE  

(LCP-6-CAR-20-0077-2) 
 
Dear Chair Brownsey and Members of the Commission, 

The City of Carlsbad thanks the Coastal Commission for postponing the Carlsbad Accessory Dwelling 
Unit Update (LCP-6-CAR-20-0077-2) from the commission’s February meeting to the March 
meeting; the city appreciates the opportunity to resolve city concerns with the related suggested 
modifications.  After successfully working with commission staff, the suggested modifications have 
been revised to address the majority of city concerns, and city staff support the revised 
modifications, except for the modifications to coastal development permit (CDP) exemptions 
(suggested modification #7).   

The Carlsbad Local Coastal Program (LCP) Implementation Plan (Carlsbad Municipal Code Section 
21.201.060.B) currently exempts attached accessory dwelling units (ADU) from a coastal 
development permit (CDP), except in the circumstances identified in Carlsbad Municipal Code 
Section 21.201.060.B., such as in environmentally sensitive areas or within Coastal Commission 
appeal areas.  The city’s proposed Accessory Dwelling Unit Update (LCP-6-CAR-20-0077-2) does not 
change the types of improvements that are currently exempt from a CDP, other than to add 
reference to “junior accessory dwelling units (JADU).”      

The suggested modifications to LCP-6-CAR-20-0077-2 would require a minor CDP for all ADUs and 
JADUs, unless they are entirely within an existing dwelling and do not expand existing habitable 
space.  The city requests that the Coastal Commission retain the city’s existing CDP exemption for 
ADUs, and include JADUs, that are attached to or within an existing dwelling, for the following 
reasons: 

1. The existing CDP exemption for improvements to an existing residential building, including 
ADUs that are attached to the primary residence or converted from existing space, does not 
apply in sensitive coastal resource areas, as listed below.  With these exceptions to the CDP 
exemption, there is no significant need to require a CDP in order to ensure protection of coastal 
resources.   

Exceptions to CDP exemption: 

a.    On a beach, wetland or seaward of the mean high tide line; 
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b.   Where the residence or proposed improvement would encroach in an environmentally 

sensitive habitat area or within fifty feet of the edge of a coastal bluff; 

c.   Improvements that would result in an increase of ten percent or more of internal floor area 
of an existing structure or an additional improvement of ten percent or less where an 
improvement to the structure had previously been undertaken pursuant to PRC Section 
30610(a), or an increase in height by more than ten percent of an existing structure and/or 
any significant nonattached structure such as garages, fences, shoreline protective works or 
docks, and such improvements are on property located: 

i. Between the sea and the first public road paralleling the sea, 

ii.   Within three hundred feet of the inland extent of any beach or of the mean high tide of 
the sea where there is no beach, whichever is the greater distance, or 

iii.   In significant scenic resources areas as designated by the Commission; 

d.   Significant alteration of landforms including removal or placement of vegetation on a beach, 
wetland, or sand dune, or within fifty feet of the edge of a coastal bluff; 

e.   Expansion or construction of water wells or septic systems; 

f.    Improvements to establish an accessory dwelling unit that is attached to the primary 
residence, or converted from the existing space of a primary residence or attached accessory 
structure where such primary residence or attached accessory structure is nonconforming 
with respect to habitat preserve buffers or geologic stability setbacks in the certified local 
coastal program. 

2. Requiring a CDP for all attached ADUs, which are currently exempt from a CDP, is an 
unnecessary deterrent to the construction of ADUs.  As described above, the protection of 
coastal resources is addressed by excluding certain areas from the CDP exemption. 

3. The suggested modifications will require a CDP for any ADU or JADU that increases existing 
habitable space; however, a room addition or other expansion of habitable space would be 
exempt from a CDP, unless in the areas listed above.  As an example, a 400 square foot ADU 
addition vs. a 400 square foot room addition results in the same habitable space, but one has a 
kitchen.  A homeowner could construct a room addition to an existing dwelling, and after 
construction of the room addition the added space could be converted to an ADU without a 
CDP.   This situation could be avoided by retaining the city’s existing CDP exemption for 
attached ADUs, which are currently subject to the same exemption provision as room additions 
or other improvements to an existing dwelling. The city’s proposal would provide the same 
protection to coastal resources, with the addition of encouraging the natural affordable housing 
that accessory dwellings provide.     

4. The suggested modifications will result in an increase in the number of CDPs that the city must 
process in a compressed timeframe, as the 2020 changes to state law (Government Code 
Section 65852.2) requires all accessory dwelling units be processed within 60 days (120 days 
prior to 2020), if there is an existing dwelling on the property.  City staff have difficulty meeting 
the 60-day processing requirement for the ADUs that require a minor CDP today.  Increasing the 
number of CDPs for ADUs and JADUs will be an added burden to the city’s already heavy 
workload. 
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City staff support the suggested modifications to LCP-6-CAR-20-0077-2, except for the modifications 
to CDP exemptions.  Therefore, the city respectfully requests, for the reasons described above, that 
the Coastal Commission support the city’s LCPA to Carlsbad Municipal Code Section 21.201.060, as 
submitted, which retains the existing CDP exemption for attached ADUs and adds JADUs to the 
exemption.   

Sincerely, 

 
JEFF MURPHY, Director  
Community Development Department 
 
cc: Gary Barberio, City of Carlsbad Deputy City Manager 

Don Neu, City of Carlsbad City Planner 
Eric Lardy, City of Carlsbad Principal Planner 

 Jennifer Jesser, City of Carlsbad Senior Planner 
 Corey Funk, City of Carlsbad Associate Planner 
 Diana Lilly, California Coastal Commission, District Manager 

Erin Prahler, California Coastal Commission, District Supervisor 
 Carrie Boyle, California Coastal Commission, Coastal Program Analyst  
 











 




